
APRIL 30, 2018 
Brookline School Committee Ad Hoc Task Force on School Names: 
Recommendation on Renaming of the Edward Devotion School 
 
The Ad Hoc Task Force on School Names, established by the Brookline School Committee on 
March 22nd, voted unanimously on April 24th to recommend that the School Committee vote 
favorably on Town Meeting Warrant Article 23 calling for the removal of Edward Devotion’s 
name from the Edward Devotion School.  The Devotion question is only one part of the work of 
the Task Force.  The Task Force was charged with examining the names of all of the Brookline 
schools and will continue to meet and to research school names and the naming process. 
 
The Task Force members are a representative, diverse group of Brookline citizens and 
interested parties.  They include: 
School Committee Capital Subcommittee Chair/Naming Committee Member   Helen Charlupski  
Hidden Brookline Chair   Barbara Brown  
Brookline High School History Teacher/Devotion Alum   Malcolm Cawthorne  
Past Devotion Teacher, Vice Principal, and Principal   John Dempsey  
Brookline Office of Diversity, Inclusion & Community Relations Director   Lloyd Gellineau 
Devotion Alum/Community Member/Town Meeting Member   Mark Gray  
Devotion/Steps to Success Parent   Misti Jaynes  
Brookline Historical Society President   Ken Liss  
Devotion Student   Farah Mamedova  
Devotion Parent/Community Member   Pam Roberts 
Brookline High School Student   Sari Gubar 
 
The Task Force conducted research on the legacy of Edward Devotion.  Edward Devotion’s 
father or grandfather was a French Hugenot (Protestant) who came to Brookline from France at 
a time when Protestants were being persecuted.  He was an early settler in the Muddy River 
hamlet, which in 1705 became the Town of Brookline.  The school is named after either his son 
or his grandson, the second Edward Devotion, 1668-1744.  The second Edward Devotion was a 
resident of colonial Brookline who held several local offices and who left money in his will for 
the town toward the establishment of a school in the center of town, which was then Walnut 
Street.  An inventory of his property compiled after his death included land, livestock, 
household goods and “one Negrow” valued at 30 pounds. (see attached 1. chronology of 
Devotion and the school  2. his will) 
 
The Task Force was working under a tight deadline ahead of the School Committee’s discussion 
and possible vote on April 26th — less than a month before Town Meeting.  The Task Force 
carried out its work in a thoughtful and respectful manner despite the urgency.  The Task Force 
listened to current and former students, parents, and teachers at the school and to other 
members of the community.  There are strong opinions and emotions on both sides of the 
question, but the members of the Task Force felt the reasons for changing the name 
outweighed those for keeping it the same. 
 



The local debate is taking place amid a national conversation on the propriety of honoring slave 
holders and supporters of slavery on public and private buildings and monuments.  The 
Devotion question provides an opportunity to recognize and discuss the fact that slavery and its 
legacy had and have an impact in Brookline as well as nationally. 
 
The minutes of the Task Force and documents compiled by its members are available on the 
School Committee website: https://www.brookline.k12.ma.us/Page/2339.  A fuller report on 
the Task Force’s charge to look at all Brookline School names will be forthcoming.  (Given the 
upcoming School Committee meeting 4/26/18, the Task Force members felt it was important to 
make our recommendation known even before this full report could be written.) 
 
 

https://www.brookline.k12.ma.us/Page/2339


Edward Devotion and the Edward Devotion School: A Chronology 
 
1645 - Edward Devotion (1621-1685), an immigrant French Protestant (or Huguenot) first appeared in the 
records of Muddy River, a hamlet of the Town of Boston.  
 
c.1680 – This first Edward Devotion, or possibly his son John, built a house on what is now Harvard Street.  
 
1740 - Edward Devotion (1668-1744), the son or grandson of the first Edward Devotion — records are unclear 
— sold the Harvard Street house and land to Solomon Hill. (Devotion’s primary residence at this time was 
another house on Washington Street.) The current Edward Devotion House was probably built by Hill over the 
frame of the c1680 house.  
 
1744 - Death of the second Edward Devotion. His will, executed the year before his death, decreed that any 
money left over after payment of his debts and funeral expenses and other bequests be used "towards 
building or maintaining a School as near the centre of the said town as shall be agreed upon by the town.”  If a 
site for a new school could not be agreed upon, the money was to be used to purchase a wood lot for use by 
the town to support the town’s school and church. An inventory of his property compiled after his death 
included land, livestock, household goods, and “one Negrow” valued at 30 pounds.  
 
1762 - The former Devotion land and house on Harvard Street reverted to Devotion’s widow Mary upon the 
failure of Solomon Hill to pay the mortgage on the property. It was then sold, and the town, as stipulated in 
the will, received funds. In 1837, these funds were recorded as amounting to $2,281.01. The town added 
additional funds received from the Federal government, bringing the total amount to just over $4,500.  
 
1844 - The money in the Edward Devotion Fund was allocated toward the construction of the new Brookline 
Town Hall on Prospect Street, near the location of the current Town Hall. The building contained two rooms 
used as school rooms.  
 
1884 - Town Meeting, apparently considering the use of the funds for the Town Hall not to have fulfilled 
Devotion’s bequest, voted to add $5,000 to the Devotion Fund to be put toward expansion of the Brookline 
High School on School Street. A large hall in the school was named the Edward Devotion Hall in recognition of 
Devotion’s bequest, and a plaque commemorating his gift was placed in the school. (The plaque was lost when 
the old Brookline High School was replaced by a new building on Greenough Street in 1893.) 
 
1891 – A large portion of the former Edward Devotion property, including the Edward Devotion House, was 
purchased by the Town from the estate of a later owner, Nahum Smith, for $61,000. The property had passed 
through several owners after 1762, including William Marshall, Israel Thorndike, and George Babcock. 
 
1892 – A new school named the Edward Devotion School was built on the site. (No record of a discussion of 
the naming at the time has been found.) Other buildings were added in 1898 and 1913. The 1892 and 1898 
buildings were later replaced. The 1913 building is incorporated into the new school scheduled to open in 
September 2018. 
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